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The Francis House, of native stone, is three stories and carries the characteristic 
square plan of the Second Empire style with a projecting three story central pavilion, 
The bellcast mansard roof has decorative shingles and pedimented gable dormers 
with semi-circular arched windows. The first and second stories are of cut native 
stone quarried south of Calistoga.

A cornice with paired brackets and a panelled frieze supports the projecting eaves. 
To the north side is a three story square bay window with a mansard third story. 
Paired semi-circular arched windows of the second story are tall and narrow with 
keystones and stone corbels. The east windows on the second floor have a semi-^ 
circular transom. Windows on the first level are single, tall, narrow and arched.

The main entryway is through the central pavilion with its double doors on the 
east side. There is also a doorway on the second level with a semi-circular arch 
and transom. The massive portico in front (east elevation) was added during the 
Francis House's era as the Calistoga Hospital. The portico, attached to the stone 
walls has begun to pull away. There is also a two story addition to the north side 
of masonry block ( date unknown.)

The interior of the Frances House, has .been altered during the period it served as 
a hospital, but the exterior of. finely Grafted stone has weathered well. The 
essential design fabric, though marred by the portico , is basically unaltered and 
the portico could be removed without difficulty in renovation. The Francis House 
retains its original setting on a large corner lot with trees and commands a 
prominent location at the intersection of Spring and Myrtle on the edge -of one 
of Calistoga's earliest residential neighborhoods.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Francis House is believed to be the only stone residence in the Second Empire style 
in Napa County. It exhibits a high degree of craftsmanship attained by local stonemasons 
in the 19th century which is usually seen in winery rather than domestic architecture. 
The Francis House, built for James H. Francis, Calistoga merchant and rancher, is one 
of two Second Empire residences in Calistoga. It complements the Palmer House (built 
in 1873-74 ) which is also in the Second Empire style but in wood. The two residences 
are the only architect-designed houses remaining of this era of the 1870s and 1880s 
in Calistoga; an era of prosperity in Calistoga as it was throughout Napa County.

Of native stone quarried and cut by John McPherson south of Calistoga on the ranch 
known as the "Neddy Brown place", the Francis House was built by John Sexton. 
The architect is unknown although the design may well have come from a builder's plan 
book. It is characteristically Second Empire in style with the symmetrical square plan, 
projecting central pavilion, paired arched window^s : ahd mansard roof.

James Francis had his mercantile store on the corner of Lincoln and Washington and owned 
several ranches in the area, including one producing silver ore just north of Calistoga. 
His brother, George M. Francis, was owner of The Napa Register , Napa City's local 
newspaper. On James Francis 1 death in 1891, Col. M.E. Billings purchased the house. 
He was a Justice of the U.S. Criminal Courts under appointment from President Grant. 
Mrs. Billings was also an attourney. In 1918 the Francis House was converted to a 
hospital and served as the Calistoga Hospital until 1964.

Highly visible at the intersection of Spring and Myrtle Streets , the Francis House stands 
in rapidly deteriorating condition. The lot, purchased in the new "Western Addition" 
to Calistoga in the 1880s, is on the edge of one of Calistoga's earliest neighborhoods 
which has retained its residential character to this day. In size and scale, the Francis 
House is a focal point of the neighborhood.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
Located at the intersection of Spring Street and Myrtle Street, the site has 120' frontage on 
Myrtle Street and 160' frontage on Spring Street.
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